
Board of Selectmen   

Wastewater Management Task Force                                                    Joint Special Meeting March 18, 

2013 

1 

Special Meeting: 

Old Lyme Board of Selectmen and 

Wastewater Management Task Force 

Monday March 18, 2013 

 

The Old Lyme Board of Selectmen and Wastewater Management Task Force held a special 

joint meeting on Monday, March 18 at 4:30pm. 

Present were First Selectwoman Bonnie Reemsnyder, Selectwoman Mary Jo Nosal, and 

Selectman Skip Sibley ; Wastewater Management Task Force members Kurt Zemba, Robert 

McCarthy, Donna Bednar, Dimitri Tolchinski, Doug Wilkinson, Ernest Lorda; Town of Old 

Lyme Sanitarian Sonia Marino; Woodard & Curran representatives David Prickett and Jay 

Sheehan 

 

1. Call to Order 

First Selectwoman Bonnie Reemsnyder called the Board of Selectmen meeting to order at 

4:30pm. 

Task Force Facilitator Kurt Zemba called the Wastewater Management Task Force meeting 

to order at 4:30pm. 

  

2.  Approval of the Minutes 03/7/2013 

A motion was made by Kurt Zemba, seconded by Robert McCarthy, to approve the minutes 

of the March 7 2013 Wastewater Management Task Force meeting. Motion passed. 

 

3. Correspondence 

Attached to these minutes is e-mail correspondence from Task Force member Richard 

Prendergast regarding the White Sand Beach Association, and from Pio Lombardo of 

Lombardo Associates regarding the RFQ process. 

     

4.   Meeting with the Selected Firm to perform the Study as indicated in the RFQ.  

Preliminary discussion of the scope of work for the study with, the Firm representatives 

of the CT DEEP and the Selectmen  

Kurt Zemba distributed a draft Scope of Work (SOW), Clean Water Fund Project Cost 

Summary, and a Proposed Labor Fee Summary prepared by David Prickett and Jay Sheehan 

of Woodard & Curran. The documents were developed through discussion with the DEEP. 

Only the description and cost estimate for Task 3, dealing with the physical on-site testing, is 

still outstanding. 

Comments and suggestions from Carlos Esquerra/DEEP have now been received (attached to 

minutes), and Woodard & Curran anticipate completing and submitted their SOW and 

accompanying cost estimates over the next few days. 

Referring to the Budget on page 7 of the SOW, Mr. Sheehan explained that $18,000, 

representing Clean Water Fund grant and project administrative costs, is considered ineligible 

for 55% Clean Water Fund reimbursement. 

Kurt Zemba named the four parcels currently under consideration as potential sites, to be 

known as: Cherrystones, Black Hall, Farm Road, and White Sand. 



Board of Selectmen   

Wastewater Management Task Force                                                    Joint Special Meeting March 18, 

2013 

2 

Test results from Cherrystones testing performed in 2005 have been provided to Woodard & 

Curran. Pursuant to DEEP approval, those existing test results may reduce both the amount 

and the cost of new testing required. 

In response to a question from Selectwoman Mary Jo Nosal, Mr. Sheehan indicated that 

proposed construction at the Cherrystones site should not impact the existing test results. 

Mr. Sheehan believes the total cost of the feasibility study is not likely to exceed $175,000.  

 

 

 

5.  Discussion for preparation and scheduling Public Presentations, Meetings with 

the appropriate town boards and a Town Meeting. 

Public presentations have been scheduled for 7:30 pm Monday, March 25 and 11 am Saturday, 

March 30. Both presentations will take place in the Town Hall Meeting Hall. 

The Town Meeting to approve the expenditure for the study will be scheduled for Tuesday, 

April 9 at 7:30pm in the Middle School Auditorium. 

The Board of Selectmen must set the date for the Town Meeting as soon as possible. The Call 

of the Meeting must include the “not to exceed” cost estimate. First Selectwoman Reemsnyder 

said the Call of the Meeting could be approved at the April 1 BOS meeting or at a Special 

Meeting immediately preceding the Public Presentation on March 25. 

First Selectwoman Reemsnyder noted that time is needed to develop handouts for the 

Presentations, including Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and a 1 page bulleted outline. 

 

Kurt Zemba stated that he will ask volunteers from the Task Force to draft those materials. 

 

Selectman Sibley said that, especially with complex projects like the Wastewater Management 

study, proper vetting by the public is essential. Pre-meeting planning needs to be a priority. 

He emphasized the importance of objectivity on materials prepared: What are the benefits? 

What are the disadvantages? He stressed that the materials cannot advocate for or against the 

proposal. The FAQ can be edited after the Public Presentation(s) and tailored to actual 

questions and comments.  

 

First Selectwoman Reemsnyder would like information on the Town’s website as soon as 

possible to give people time to digest the material. 

 

Because he anticipates that many in attendance at the Town Meeting will not have attended an 

earlier Public Presentation, Kurt Zemba suggested the following Town Meeting format: 1) 

Brief Presentation on the proposal  2) Open to questions only  3) All questions answered  4) 

Motion to 

approve proposal  5) Discussion – comments  

 

Selectwoman Nosal suggested that residents be allowed to submit written questions at the 

Town Meeting as an option. 

 

Mr. Sheehan said has attended meetings where questions were typed into PowerPoint and 

projected 



Board of Selectmen   

Wastewater Management Task Force                                                    Joint Special Meeting March 18, 

2013 

3 

on a screen as they were asked. 

 

Kurt Zemba asked Donna Bednar and Doug Wilkinson to develop FAQ. He asked Robert 

McCarthy to work on a 1 page bulleted outline with David Prickett and Jay Sheehan of 

Woodard & Curran.  Kurt suggested a Public Presentation format: brief summary/history of 

the project by the First Selectwoman, followed by a 10 minute presentation by Woodard & 

Curran. Again, he suggested that all questions be logged, then read back & answered. Doug 

Wilkinson can represent the Task Force at the Monday March 26 Presentation. Robert 

McCarthy will represent the Task Force on Saturday, March 30. 

 

Robert McCarthy stressed the importance of calling the project a feasibility study. 

 

Selectman Sibley spoke about the need to offer a global perspective on the project; i.e. what 

the next steps will entail and that the Town is developing an option in order to look out for 

the best interests of all its residents. 

 

Task Force member Dimitri Tolchinski distributed a letter mailed to resident from the 

WPCA in 2011. He suggested that the Town mail a letter to residents about the upcoming 

Public Presentations and Town Meeting. 

 

First Selectwoman Reemsnyder said that, while she will give thought to a mailing, she does 

not want to confuse residents with too much unnecessary data about the feasibility study. 

There will be plenty of time to provide more information as the project proceeds, she said. 

 

6.    Old Business 

 Any discussion of the Task Force’s prior proceedings 

None. 

 

7. New Business 

 Site discussion per the projected scope of work for the study – Testing/Timing 

First Selectwoman Reemsnyder said that discussions with parcel owners are already underway 

in order to facilitate approvals for the necessary testing. As previously stated, test results from 

a previous Cherrystones testing have been provided.  

 

A meeting with Phil Neaton from the Black Hall Golf Club took place earlier in the day. 

Woodard & Curran were able to address some of the reservations expressed by Black Hall 

members to Mr. Neaton. Mr. Neaton will provide information to the Black Hall Board of 

Directors on Tuesday, March 19.  Messrs. Prickett and Sheehan have offered to attend a to be 

scheduled Black Hall Board of Directors meeting to answer any additional questions.   

 

Also on March 19, the First Selectwoman will be meeting with Attorney Jane Marsh 

regarding the Farm Road property. 

 

Task Force member Richard Prendergast’s e-mail addresses the White Sand property. 

 



Board of Selectmen   

Wastewater Management Task Force                                                    Joint Special Meeting March 18, 

2013 

4 

Kurt Zemba asked Donna Bednar and Doug Wilkinson to submit FAQ to Selectwoman 

Nosal by Friday. He asked Robert McCarthy to submit a 1 page bulleted outline to the First 

Selectwoman by Friday. 

Kurt thanked Woodard & Curran for exceeding the Task Force’s expectations. He 

acknowledged Carlos Esquerra of the DEEP and thanked members of the Task Force for 

participating in the process. 

 

8. Adjournment 

A motion was made by Selectman Sibley, seconded by Selectwoman Nosal, to adjourn the 

Board of Selectmen meeting at 5:44pm. 

A motion was made by Donna Bednar, seconded by Robert McCarthy to adjourn the 

Wastewater Management Task Force meeting at 5:44pm. 

Joint meeting adjourned. 

          

 

Submitted by  

Catherine Frank 

March 19, 2013 

 


